
 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday September 15th, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the September 15th, 2025 Regular Meeting of The Lyman Select Board. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS  

a. Solar On Earth – Solar Subscription Presentation  
 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others. The Board may not 
be able to respond to Q&A during public comment; If you wish to be placed on a future agenda, 
please contact the Town Manager.  

b. Mail         •Public  Hearing Notice Maine DEP   •Days Mills Bridge Closure Notice Maine DOT 

                                                     •York County Sheriff’s Monthly Report       •MMA Letter

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any  
b. Discussion – Kennebunk Pond Beach Gate Damages/Repairs – Tabled until 9/15/25  
c. Discussion – Old Post Rd Abandonment Updates and Public Hearing Scheduled 10/20/25 
d. KerryJo Sampson - Newsletter Updates 

 
ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  

a. Fire Commission/ Fire Chief  
b. Treasurer – Expense Report  
c. Town Clerk – Excise and Tax report 
d. Assessor – Tax Commitment Report 

 
ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Special Amusement Permit – On A Plain Brewery  
b. Discussion - David Rifkin Re: Peach Orchard/Schoolhouse Rd Abandonment  
c. Discussion – Reschedule November 3rd Select Board Meeting (Election Nov 4th) 
d. Committee Re-appointment application – Cemetery Committee 

 
ITEM #6 MINUTES 

a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 09/02/2025 

ITEM #7  SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #13 in the amount of $38,063.67 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #12 (FY2026) in the amount of $114,966.85 
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #14 (FY2026) in the amount of $11,668.30 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1 M.R.S.A §405 (A) Discussion regarding personnel matters 
 
 
ADJOURN 



From: Sims, Meagan
Cc: Sims, Meagan; DEP, TRComments
Subject: Notice of Public Hearing and Opportunity for Public Comment for Maine’s Triennial Review of Water Quality

Standards
Date: Thursday, August 28, 2025 9:10:19 AM

Please distribute this notice as appropriate.

Notice of Public Hearing and Opportunity for Public Comment
for

Maine’s Triennial Review of Water Quality Standards

The Maine Board of Environmental Protection (“Board”) invites the public to attend a public
hearing, to offer oral testimony, and to submit written comments on proposed changes to
Maine’s water quality standards as part of the Maine Department of Environmental
Protection’s (“Department”) Triennial Review of Water Quality Standards. The federal Clean
Water Act and Maine law (38 M.R.S. § 464(3)(B)) requires states to periodically, but at least
once every 3 years, hold a public hearing for the purpose of reviewing water quality standards
and, as appropriate, for modifying existing and developing new water quality standards.

Pursuant to the Maine Administrative Procedure Act, 5 M.R.S. §§ 8001 – 11008, Maine’s Water
Classification Program, 38 M.R.S. §§ 464 – 470, and the Board’s responsibilities and duties
under 38 M.R.S. § 341-D(8), the Board will hold a public hearing to receive testimony on
changes to Maine’s water quality standards, including changes that are currently proposed
and any other recommended changes. The current proposal for changes to Maine’s water
quality standards (including Department responses to preliminary public comments) is
available on the Department’s Triennial Review of Maine's Water Quality Standards webpage.

Following the public hearing and written comment period, the Board will deliberate proposed
changes to the water quality standards and may vote to recommend to the Maine Legislature
specific statutory changes necessary to implement new or revised water quality standards.
The Legislature has the sole authority to make changes to the water quality classification
system. Any changes to Maine’s water quality standards enacted by the Legislature must be
approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to take final effect. 

Public Hearing: The public hearing will be held at the Augusta Civic Center, 76 Community
Drive, Augusta, Maine on Thursday, October 16, 2025, beginning at 9:00 a.m. Further
information on the Board hearing, including an agenda and hearing materials, will be available
on the Board webpage approximately one week prior to the hearing. Persons who testify are
encouraged to also submit to Board Clerk Ruth Ann Burke (clerk.bep@maine.gov) a written
copy of their testimony during or immediately following the hearing. The hearing is an
opportunity for members of the public to offer testimony and useful information. Department
staff and Board members will not respond to questions during the hearing. The Board and staff
to the Board may ask clarifying questions of any person offering testimony at the hearing. Any

ITEM #2: (b.) Mail

mailto:Meagan.Sims@maine.gov
mailto:Meagan.Sims@maine.gov
mailto:TRComments.DEP@maine.gov
https://www.maine.gov/dep/water/wqs/triennial-review.html
https://www.maine.gov/dep/bep/index.html
mailto:clerk.bep@maine.gov


person with a disability who plans to attend the hearing and requires specific
accommodations should contact the Board Clerk (clerk.bep@maine.gov or 207-287-2811)
prior to the hearing.

Public Comments: In addition to the opportunity to provide oral testimony at the public
hearing, written comments on the proposed Triennial Review of Maine’s Water Quality
Standards may be submitted to the Board from August 28, 2025 through the close of the
comment period at 11:59 p.m. on Wednesday, October 22, 2025. Written comments should
be directed to: Department of Environmental Protection, Attn: Meagan Sims, 17 State House
Station, Augusta, Maine 04333-0017, or submitted via email to
TRComments.DEP@maine.gov. See Maine DEP Opportunity for Comment.

For further information, contact Meagan Sims at meagan.sims@maine.gov or (207) 508-8776.

Meagan Sims
Water Quality Standards Coordinator, Bureau of Water Quality
Maine Department of Environmental Protection
17 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333
(207) 508-8776, meagan.sims@maine.gov

mailto:clerk.bep@maine.gov
mailto:TRComments.DEP@maine.gov
http://www.maine.gov/dep/comment/
mailto:meagan.sims@maine.gov
https://www.maine.gov/dep/
mailto:meagan.sims@maine.gov


Equal Opportunity Employer  

September 4, 2025 

RE: Days Mills Bridge Replacement – WIN. 026226.00 
Kennebunk & Arundel, ME

To Whom It May Concern, 

Please be advised that Days Mills Bridge, #2221, on Alewive Rd. (State Route 
35) over Kennebunk River, in Kennebunk & Arundel, ME - approximately 0.02 of
a mile north of Days Mills Rd. will be closing Monday, September 15th for removal
and replacement of the existing bridge. It will reopen on, or before – June 29,
2026. Alewive Rd. (State Route 35) will be closed to all vehicular, bicycle and
pedestrian traffic during this closure. Please follow the signed detour utilizing The
Maine Turnpike & State Route 111. Should you have any questions feel free to
contact me anytime via email at jmarceau@wymanandsimpson.com or at (207)
319-8952.

Regards, 

Josh Marceau 

Cc: 

Jack Blanchard, Resident Engineer jack.blanchard@tylin.com 
Andrew Gobeil, MDOT Comms  andrew.gobeil@maine.gov 
Merton Brown, Kennebunk Town Clerk mbrown@kennebunkmaine.us 
Bryan Laverriere, Kennebunk Town Manager blaverriere@kennebunkmaine.us 
Kathleen Nolette, Kennebunk Admin. Asst. knolette@kennebunkmaine.us 
Chris Osterrieder, Kennebunk Town Engineer costerrieder@kennebunkmaine.us 
Dustin Wilborn, Kennebunk Post Office  Dustin.T.Wilborn@usps.gov 
Matt Shinberg, RSU 21 Communications mshinberg@rsu21.net 
Dr. Martin Grimm, RSU 21 Superintendent mgrimm@rsu21.net 
Chris Pasciuto, RSU 21 Transportation  cpasciuto@rsu21.net 
Robert MacKenzie, Kennebunk Police Chief    rmackenzie@kennebunkmaine.us 
Eric O’Brien, Kennebunk Police Deputy Chief eobrien@kennebunkmaine.us 
Justin Cooper, Kennebunk Fire Chief jcooper@kennebunkmaine.us 
Dawn Jewett, Kennebunk Fire Admin. Asst. djewett@kennebunkmaine.us 

jmarceau
Josh

Lindsay Gagne
Rectangle



Lindsay Gagne
Pencil



















ITEM #3: (b.) Kennebunk Pond Beach Gate









Welcome to the

LYMAN CONNECTION

AI Disclosure Notice
Some articles and photographs in this newsletter have been created or assisted by artificial intelligence technology. We remain committed to providing 

accurate, helpful information to our community while utilizing available tools to enhance our publication.

Dear Community,

We are thrilled to introduce The Lyman Connection; a brand-new quarterly 
newsletter designed specifically for our wonderful community! After 
planning and preparation, we are excited to launch this publication as a way 
to continue keeping everyone connected, informed, and engaged with all 
the amazing things happening right here in Lyman.

Our Vision for Connection
In today's fast-paced world, it is easy to lose touch with what is happening 
in our immediate community. The Lyman Connection aims to bridge that 
gap by creating a central hub of information that brings us all closer 
together. We believe that an informed community is a stronger community, 
and when residents know what is available to them – from services and programs to volunteer opportunities 
and social events – everyone benefits.

This newsletter represents more than just information sharing; it is about fostering the community spirit that 
has always been at the heart of Lyman. Whether you are a longtime resident with deep roots in our town or a 
newcomer still discovering all that Lyman has to offer, The Lyman Connection is here to help you feel more 
connected to your community.  It is made possible by the dedication of town staff, volunteers, and 
community partners who believe in the importance of keeping our residents informed and engaged. We 
hope this newsletter will be both useful and enjoyable to read.

Looking Ahead
As we embark on this quarterly journey together, we are committed 
to making each issue better than the last. We welcome your 
feedback, suggestions for topics to cover, and ideas for community 
spotlights. This is your newsletter, and we want it to reflect the 
interests and needs of our entire community.

Over the coming issues, you can look forward to in-depth coverage 
of town initiatives, profiles of local organizations making a 
difference, seasonal event calendars, helpful guides for navigating 
town services, and much more. We are also exploring opportunities 
to feature guest contributors, including insights from town officials and community volunteers.

Thank You,
The Lyman Select Board and Town Manager

LINK TO TOWN OFFICIAL CALENDAR:
Events for October 2025 - Town of Lyman Maine
Events for November 2025 - Town of Lyman Maine
Events for December 2025 - Town of Lyman Maine

Watch live or recorded town meetings on YouTube:
https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams

OCT – DEC 2025

ITEM #3: (d) Lyman Newsletter

https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-10/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-10/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-10/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-11/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-11/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-11/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-12/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-12/
https://lyman-me.gov/events/month/2025-12/
https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams


DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS & CODE – FAQS

Can I build on my lot?
Minimum dimension requirements for a buildable lot are outlined in the Town of 
Lyman Zoning Ordinance, Article 6 (pages 15–17) which covers lot dimensions and 
allowable structure and structure dimensions. Town Ordinances can be found on 
our website under general info – ordinance & town policies, or by contacting The 
Building and Codes department.

How long does a permit take?
Once a completed application is submitted, the Code Enforcement Officer (CEO) has 14 days to issue a 
decision.

How do I know what is allowed with my property?
Article 5 (starting on page 6) of the Zoning Ordinance explains allowable uses in each district, either by CEO 
permit or Planning Board approval. If a use is not listed, it’s possible it may not be permitted, but always 
feel free to check with the Buildings and Codes Department if you are unsure. 

How do I file a complaint?
Submit a signed complaint form to the CEO, who will investigate.  You can obtain a complaint form from 
our website or by stopping by the Buildings & Codes Department. 

What if I have a dispute about my property line?
These are civil matters and not enforced by the Town. Professional or legal assistance is recommended.

What are the new building and energy code requirements for insulation?
You may either:
Provide a ResCheck report (www.rescheck.com) showing compliance, or 
Follow the prescriptive standards in the IRC Table R402.3.3.
Lyman is in Zone 6.

What building codes are applicable for Lyman?
As of April 7, 2025, the Town follows the 2021 MUBEC codes in accordance with state law.

What’s in my property file?
Property files are public records. Visit the Town Hall during normal business hours and you can request to 
see a property file

Where can I get permit application forms?
Forms are available on the Town website under Downloadable Forms, or in the hallway outside the 
department office.  

Is there a drop box for applications?
Yes, a labeled “drop box” is located outside the Buildings & Codes Department.

How do I get a 911 address?
After your building permit is approved, a 911 address will be assigned by the addressing agent. If your 
property does not yet have one, you may also request an address directly from the department.

TOWN DEPT UPDATES OCT – DEC 2025

Page 2 of 20

https://lyman-me.gov/general-info/ordinances-town-charter-policies/
https://lyman-me.gov/general-info/ordinances-town-charter-policies/
https://lyman-me.gov/general-info/ordinances-town-charter-policies/
https://lyman-me.gov/general-info/downloadable-forms/
http://www.rescheck.com/
https://lyman-me.gov/general-info/downloadable-forms/


Election Updates
The next election will be the State General Referendum on November 4, 2024. 
Absentee ballot request applications are now available and can be submitted online 
through the Maine.gov Absentee Ballot Request Portal (Click here for link) or at the 
Town Clerk’s office, or by phone (207) 499-7562. Ballots will be available about 30 days 
before the election for absentee voting. Requests can be made through October 30, 
2025. For details about the State Referendum, visit www.maine.gov , and for local 
election and town meeting information, visit www.lyman-me.gov.

TOWN DEPT UPDATES

LOOKING TO VOLUNTEER FOR A BOARD OR COMMITTEE?

 Your Town Needs You: Volunteer Opportunities

The Town of Lyman is seeking residents to serve on town committees. These volunteer 
positions offer meaningful ways to serve your community and have a direct impact on 
Lyman's future. No prior experience necessary – just a commitment to making our town 
better. 

Planning Board – Your local planning board reviews and approves development projects
like new subdivisions, commercial buildings, and home additions. These volunteer 
residents ensure projects comply with zoning laws and fit with the community's character and master plan.

RSU Education Board – Your local school board governs the public school district, making key decisions 
about education policy, budgets, and leadership. These elected volunteers hire and evaluate the 
superintendent, approve annual budgets, and set academic standards and curricula.

TRANSFER STATION – WINTER HOURS & SWAP SHOP CLOSURE

Starting October 2nd, the Transfer Station will shift to winter hours. Thursday hours will change 
to 8:00 AM – 4:00 PM. All other hours will remain the same, with Saturday and Sunday open 
from 8:00 AM – 4:00 PM and Tuesday open from 8:00 AM – 12:00 PM.

The Swap Shop will also be closed for the winter season effective October 2nd . As a reminder, 
all vehicles using the Transfer Station must have a valid Lyman Dump Sticker displayed on the 
passenger-side windshield. Stickers are available at the Town Clerk’s Office, please 
remember to bring your vehicle registration.

Tax Billing Updates
Tax billing will be delayed due to software issues, which we are working to resolve 
before committing taxes. Interest will not be applied until 30 days after bills are mailed, 
regardless of the delay. Residents are welcome to make a payment toward their taxes 
at any time or wait until billing is sent out. Tax payments can now also be made online 
for both real estate and personal property taxes through our payment portal at 
www.lyman-me.gov.

INTERESTED IN SERVING? 

Please fill out a Committee Application form and send a copy to the Town Manager. You can submit a copy 
by dropping the form off at the Town office, or by mail, or by email to: townmanager@lyman-me.gov
Members of a committee must be a registered voter of the Town of Lyman pursuant to Lyman’s Municipal 
Charter.

TOWN CLERK

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 3 of 20

https://apps.web.maine.gov/cgi-bin/online/AbsenteeBallot/index.pl
http://www.maine.gov/
http://www.lyman-me.gov/
http://www.lyman-me.gov/
http://www.lyman-me.gov/
http://www.lyman-me.gov/
http://www.lyman-me.gov/
http://www.lyman-me.gov/
https://lyman-me.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025/07/Committee-Application-1.pdf
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Town-of-Lyman-Charter-Amended-Nov-8-2022-1.pdf
https://lyman-me.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Town-of-Lyman-Charter-Amended-Nov-8-2022-1.pdf
https://lyman-me.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Town-of-Lyman-Charter-Amended-Nov-8-2022-1.pdf


TOWN DEPT UPDATES OCT – DEC 2025

Page 4 of 20

r



CHEMICAL DISPOSAL GUIDE OCT – DEC 2025

Page 5 of 20



Program Gets Green Light

The state has awarded us $22,261 to get this important sustainability initiative up and 
running. Our Transfer Station Amendment application was submitted on August 2nd, 
and we are now waiting for the updated license that will allow us to begin operations 
at the facility. While we wait for final approval, we are already able to start ordering 
the equipment and materials we will need.

FOOD WASTE DIVERSION PROGRAM
by Amber Swett, Select Board Vice Chair

FOOD WASTE DIVERSION PROGRAM MOVING FORWARD

Great news for our community's environmental efforts! We've received official approval 
and funding from the state to launch our Food Waste Diversion Program. This exciting 
initiative will allow residents to divert food scraps and organic waste from our regular trash 
stream, turning what was once waste into valuable compost while reducing our 
environmental footprint.

Community Outreach Begins

Ecomaine partnered with Parks and Recreation at our first Concert in the Park to 
spread awareness about the upcoming program. They distributed countertop 
composting buckets and other helpful materials while collecting contact 
information from interested residents. If you signed up at the event, expect to hear 
from us soon with program details and educational opportunities.

Spotlight on Lyman

Our town caught the attention of ecomaine educator Abby Hart, who 
featured Lyman in her spotlight series on transfer stations partnering 
with ecomaine. After touring our facility, Abby interviewed our staff 
about the Food Waste Diversion Program to help promote this exciting 
addition to our waste management services.

During the interview, we shared our excitement and eagerness to get 
this program launched for our community. The Food Waste Diversion 
Program represents a win-win opportunity for Lyman - it will help 
reduce our town's waste disposal costs while significantly lessening 
our environmental impact by keeping organic waste out of landfills. 
We're enthusiastic about offering residents this chance to make a real 
difference in reducing trash pollution on our planet while saving 
taxpayer money.

What's Next?

We are making steady progress toward the launch while waiting for our 
final licensing approval. In the meantime, we are preparing educational 
materials and gathering community interest. Stay tuned for more updates 
on when the program will officially begin and how residents can 
participate in reducing food waste in our community.

We will be on the lookout for volunteers to help staff the Food Waste 
Diversion office during Transfer Station hours once it is up and running 
and would welcome anyone who has any amount of time to give. Email 
Amber Swett at lyman.ecome.rep@lyman-me.gov with your information. 

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 6 of 20

mailto:lyman.ecome.rep@lyman-me.gov
mailto:lyman.ecome.rep@lyman-me.gov
mailto:lyman.ecome.rep@lyman-me.gov


KEY DATES & PROJECT GUIDELINES
Now through October 15th: Grant applications are 
open.
Applications should clearly 
demonstrate commitment to the 
waste hierarchy and landfill 
diversion methods.
Selection is made by ecomaine’s 
Outreach and Recycling Committee, 
based on:

• Quality of project proposal and school
commitment

• Ease of replication
• Demonstrated potential for waste reduction,

reuse, recycling, or composting
• Likelihood of success and sustainability
• Overall merit and impact potential

HOW TO APPLY

Who’s eligible: Any public or 
private school serving students 
from preschool through 12th 
grade within an ecomaine 
member community

Review all rules and guidelines here.
or click the button below to
be sent an application
EcoMaine Application Form

EXAMPLES OF PAST PROJECTS

Westbrook Middle School - Set up and facilitate 
recycling and composting in their school 
cafeteria that feeds 780 kids a day. Also used the 
grant to make school-wide paper recycling more 
user friendly and safe for students.

Stepping Stones Montessori School – 
Purchased and installed two trash/recycle 
receptacles on playground from Treetop 
Products.

North Haven Community School – Grant funded 
resources to begin an official green team, to kick 
off their whole school composting efforts, and for 
additional recycling bins to increase visibility of 
waste disposal.

Stepping Stones 
Montessori School

Westbrook Middle School

North Haven School

SCHOOL WASTE DIVERSION GRANTS NOW ACCEPTING APPLICATIONS!

WHAT ARE SCHOOL WASTE DIVERSION 
GRANTS?

Ecomaine’s School Waste Diversion Grants 
support preschool through 12th grade schools 
within ecomaine’s member communities. These 
grants, part of a $30,000 pool, offer up to $5,000 
per school to fund projects that advance waste 
reduction through the hierarchy of Reduce, Reuse, 
Recycle, and Compost/Digestion, with a strong 
emphasis on waste diversion strategies. If your 
school is planning to install recycling bins, launch 
a composting program, or create a waste-
awareness curriculum that can be replicated 
elsewhere, this grant could be just what you need. 

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 7 of 20

https://d5bx2c04.na1.hubspotlinks.com/Ctc/ZX+113/d5bx2c04/VWF13Y6j_VBTW7SHDKn4M9MmhW5XFwz15BfxcjM5Y3j25nXHCW50kH_H6lZ3lKW6J4SgX3Z6czQN8Ml9zWP2H4GW5v8plR3mQF7bW7X94Rg1m8YwrW4hL0wd1CVCG3W7tmDj2498znMW4yWhQG7GQlysW6X4xBg5bQ8smW4H_rDb5MlrxxVX_1yx1GjxQlW2LDKCq8lwLF4W6MjG-T5QqvtsN7yNKSDnqZ_wW3LryWr7WkPb5W3kBkjR2hFth4W4wlgB68tHjl9W3y66F41fs9l8W3J0DvW72kqTgW44CVlD7CHRscW3BvYwM82VldpW2gF97b2KSZ_WN6SR78wyn4wFW76nqNz10LM9nW47mTV772p5mTW50q6Ms47TSCpW4rVP-M88_KSBW7d-hSX4v4c-DW4yP-gm87KdtyW6m75hL6-D8hvVNcsrs1cj6ygW9cNSsl73bdG4W2v--2B3DXmGlf3KvvZK04
https://d5bx2c04.na1.hubspotlinks.com/Ctc/ZX+113/d5bx2c04/VWF13Y6j_VBTW7SHDKn4M9MmhW5XFwz15BfxcjM5Y3j25nXHCW50kH_H6lZ3lKW6J4SgX3Z6czQN8Ml9zWP2H4GW5v8plR3mQF7bW7X94Rg1m8YwrW4hL0wd1CVCG3W7tmDj2498znMW4yWhQG7GQlysW6X4xBg5bQ8smW4H_rDb5MlrxxVX_1yx1GjxQlW2LDKCq8lwLF4W6MjG-T5QqvtsN7yNKSDnqZ_wW3LryWr7WkPb5W3kBkjR2hFth4W4wlgB68tHjl9W3y66F41fs9l8W3J0DvW72kqTgW44CVlD7CHRscW3BvYwM82VldpW2gF97b2KSZ_WN6SR78wyn4wFW76nqNz10LM9nW47mTV772p5mTW50q6Ms47TSCpW4rVP-M88_KSBW7d-hSX4v4c-DW4yP-gm87KdtyW6m75hL6-D8hvVNcsrs1cj6ygW9cNSsl73bdG4W2v--2B3DXmGlf3KvvZK04
https://d5bx2c04.na1.hubspotlinks.com/Ctc/ZX+113/d5bx2c04/VWF13Y6j_VBTW7SHDKn4M9MmhW5XFwz15BfxcjM5Y3j25nXHCW50kH_H6lZ3lKW6J4SgX3Z6czQN8Ml9zWP2H4GW5v8plR3mQF7bW7X94Rg1m8YwrW4hL0wd1CVCG3W7tmDj2498znMW4yWhQG7GQlysW6X4xBg5bQ8smW4H_rDb5MlrxxVX_1yx1GjxQlW2LDKCq8lwLF4W6MjG-T5QqvtsN7yNKSDnqZ_wW3LryWr7WkPb5W3kBkjR2hFth4W4wlgB68tHjl9W3y66F41fs9l8W3J0DvW72kqTgW44CVlD7CHRscW3BvYwM82VldpW2gF97b2KSZ_WN6SR78wyn4wFW76nqNz10LM9nW47mTV772p5mTW50q6Ms47TSCpW4rVP-M88_KSBW7d-hSX4v4c-DW4yP-gm87KdtyW6m75hL6-D8hvVNcsrs1cj6ygW9cNSsl73bdG4W2v--2B3DXmGlf3KvvZK04
https://d5bx2c04.na1.hubspotlinks.com/Ctc/ZX+113/d5bx2c04/VWF13Y6j_VBTW7SHDKn4M9MmhW5XFwz15BfxcjM5Y3jF5nXHCW69t95C6lZ3lwW1lhcTg5w4HFyW78LyC38-kqPhW1d4ly053QzlSW3mMTs28fQQnbN7b4Qv8gkMyFW8dw3HV33dDdzV5rz4w5V1bBSW76fG_P4t_WFwW2TCnZq2LY1q0W5DDySg7wTXkyW6P6L208j_nmtW1wf5x76qS4VPW1jjsk_6QTkThW6sVpbN4PKYM_W8c4rNl1Jc08nW8BggXZ9bH7M5N5dWL9WdWcFhW7mnnLw5R4XFfW9g_g_K94m_S5N6PvV9hDlcJxW69g41q4DWXkbW1hTWm91GmxL9W1mk3WJ8H1X_4W78WH8M66xRj7W8mVzx75klZv3W8D1LwT4s8dnrW4C7WVD1PBtHGN5lz7Ytpn6L6W4hNhPB2p0qK7W7XdTTr7bTDK6W3-JFMM3cPqtcW6Mycy824PrqBW6RBvvy6Gd9GzW31X5nd95mdyKMbm62VLkkD_VdlWNb65f5h0f4FDM7T04
https://share.hsforms.com/1yOQbryybTkSI0CvAvHOEIgqar3b?__hstc=185429238.f9523abea9c7d37af1059bff3ddab69f.1757101030108.1757101030108.1757104366730.2&__hssc=185429238.3.1757104366730&__hsfp=3474073941
https://share.hsforms.com/1yOQbryybTkSI0CvAvHOEIgqar3b?__hstc=185429238.f9523abea9c7d37af1059bff3ddab69f.1757101030108.1757101030108.1757104366730.2&__hssc=185429238.3.1757104366730&__hsfp=3474073941


MEMORIAL DAY PARADE KICKS OFF SUMMER!
What a wonderful way to honor our heroes and 
welcome summer! The Lyman Parks & Recreation 
Committee's Memorial Day Parade once again 
brought our community together for a morning of 
patriotism and celebration.
The parade was a true community effort, featuring 
our dedicated Boy Scouts, the spirited Massabesic 
Marching Band, and numerous local residents and 
businesses who proudly marched through town. The 
day began with a beautiful rendition of the national 
anthem by talented local performer Emma Gagnon, 
setting the perfect tone for the ceremony. Russell 
Carle of the Goodwins Mills AC Church delivered an
inspiring message that reminded us all of the true 

meaning behind this important day of remembrance. Thank you to everyone who participated, volunteered, 
or simply lined the streets to show their support. Events like these showcase the strong community spirit 
that makes Lyman such a special place to call home!

 CONCERTS IN THE PARK – OUR BEST YEAR YET!
July brought the launch of our 4th annual Concerts in the 
Park series, and what an incredible season it was! This year 
truly set a new standard for summer entertainment in 
Lyman. The highlight? Our brand-new stage, built this spring, 
provided the perfect backdrop for an amazing lineup of 
performers. Families enjoyed diverse musical acts including 
Granite Planet, Country Roads, The Dilemma, Dave Gluck, 
North River Music, and Henry Lowery – offering everything 
from country and rock to pop and today's biggest hits.
Thanks to Moe’s Italian Sandwiches, B&D Roadside Grill, 
and the Goodwins Mills Firefighters Relief Association for 
keeping us fed throughout the summer! We’re already 
excited to plan the 2026 season with returning and new 
vendors.

COMMITTEE UPDATES OCT – DEC 2025

Page 8 of 20

PARKS & RECREATIONS COMMITTEE EVENT HIGHLIGHTS

 PAINT NIGHT WITH SUE - A MONTHLY CREATIVE ESCAPE!
Looking for a relaxing way to unwind? Join us for Paint Night with Sue - Lyman 
Parks and Recreation's newest monthly tradition that launched this April!
Every 1st Friday from 6–8 p.m. at the Community Library, our Community Room 
transforms into an artist's studio. For just $30, you'll get all materials, expert 
guidance from Sue, plus light snacks and refreshments.
So far, participants have painted beautiful renditions of a woodland 
landscape, the Mill Pond, and the Chapel at Bunganut Pond. Each session
features a new theme perfect for beginners and experienced painters 
alike.
Ready to create your next masterpiece? Follow Lyman Parks and 
Recreation on Facebook to discover next month's theme and secure your spot!



 BUNGANUT TRAILS GET A MAJOR MAKEOVER!

A huge thank you to Collin Clark from Scout Troop 399 for 
completing an outstanding Eagle Scout Project that brought 
new life to the historic Boy Scout trails at Bunganut! Collin 
and his dedicated crew finished their incredible work this 
past April, recutting and revitalizing 
these beloved community trails. 
Building on Collin's fantastic foundation, Lyman Parks & 
Rec is committed to maintaining the momentum and 
continuing improvements to the full 2+ miles of hiking trails 
on the property, including adding much-needed signage to 
enhance the experience for all visitors.

Want to help preserve this community treasure? We're looking for 
volunteers to join our small but mighty trail maintenance team! 
Whether you are interested in general cleanup, trimming overgrowth, 
painting trail blazes, building bog bridges, or installing signage, there is 
a perfect way for you to contribute.
Our trails are a beloved community resource that require ongoing care 
to remain safe and accessible for hikers, families, and nature 
enthusiasts. Volunteer work sessions are typically scheduled on 
weekends and can accommodate various skill levels and time 
commitments.
From simple litter pickup that takes just an hour to more involved 
maintenance tasks, every contribution makes a difference in 
maintaining these natural spaces for everyone to enjoy. Join us in 
keeping our trails beautiful and well-maintained for future generations.
Ready to roll up your sleeves and make a difference? Email us at 
parksandrec@lyman-me.gov – we'd love to have you on the team!

Bunganut Pond

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 9 of 20

COMMITTEE UPDATES

mailto:parksandrec@lyman-me.gov
mailto:parksandrec@lyman-me.gov
mailto:parksandrec@lyman-me.gov


GOODWINS MILLS OCTOBERFEST – OCTOBER 19TH
Mark your calendars for Saturday, October 19th (10 a.m.–2 p.m.) at
Chadbourne Field! What started as pumpkin painting and scarecrow 
making has grown into the Goodwins Mills Octoberfest.

• Pumpkin Carving/Painting & Scarecrow Making hosted by

Parks & Rec Committee

• Food from the Goodwins Mills Firefighters Relief Association

• Bake & Book Sale with the Community Library

• Craft/Vendor Fair at the baseball field

• “Meet the People of Lyman” cemetery history walk with the Lyman Historical Society &
Cemetery Association (read more on this event on the next page)

UPCOMING PROJECTS & EVENTS

STORYWALK® & JAKE THE SNAKE
We’re currently fundraising for a new Story Walk, which will run from the 
Community Library trailhead to the Town Hall and back. This project 
combines literacy, outdoor activity, and community pride by featuring 
seasonal and local stories along the path.
Also coming soon: “Jake the Snake,” our community rock snake! Families 
are encouraged to paint and add their own rocks to Jake as he grows along the 
trail—promoting both creativity and togetherness.

 LOOKING AHEAD TO WINTER FUN
Christmas Tree Lighting – December Warm up with cocoa, cookies, 
caroling, and a special visit from Santa arriving on the fire truck! Date to be 
announced soon.
Community Ice Rink Volunteer Needed Our Community Ice Rink on John 
Street needs a dedicated winter enthusiast! We are seeking someone to 
help manage our 72' x 44' NiceRink, including setup/teardown, daily 
monitoring, ice maintenance, and organizing the skate shack. Love ice and 
snow? Email parksandrec@lyman-me.gov!

 Stay Connected: Follow Lyman Parks and Recreation on Facebook for 
the latest updates, photos, and event announcements!

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMMITTEE WILL BE AT OCTOBERFEST!
Join us to learn about our Comprehensive Plan Committee’s accomplishments over the 
past year and a half! We'll have informational pamphlets available and our committee 
members will be on hand to answer your questions and gather your input. Your voice 
matters to us!

Refreshments & Fun – so come hungry! We will be serving homemade cookies, fresh 
donuts, and warm mulled cider. We'll also have a 50/50 raffle and other activities, plus 
special items for sale. All proceeds benefit Bunganut Park improvements.
This is a great opportunity to connect with your neighbors, learn about local 
preservation efforts, and support our community park. We hope to see you there!

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 10 of 20

COMMITTEE UPDATES

mailto:parksandrec@lyman-me.gov
mailto:parksandrec@lyman-me.gov
mailto:parksandrec@lyman-me.gov


HISTORICAL CEMETERY WALK

STEP BACK IN TIME: HISTORICAL CEMETERY WALK

Presented by the Goodwin Mills Cemetery Association and Lyman 
Historical Society

"Meet the People of Lyman" – A Journey Through Our Town's Past
The Cemetery Association of Goodwins Mills Village and the Lyman 
Historical Society are joining forces to bring history to life with a 
fascinating guided tour of the Goodwins Mill Village Cemetery. This 
extraordinary collaboration promises to transform a simple cemetery 
visit into an immersive historical experience that will transport you 
back through the decades of Lyman's rich heritage.
Scheduled for Saturday, October 19th (with a rain date of October 
25th), this unique event offers visitors an intimate and engaging 
glimpse into the lives, dreams, and stories of the people who built our 
community from the ground up. Far more than just reading 
headstones, this interactive experience will breathe life into the 
names etched in stone.
Living History Comes Alive
During this captivating walk, you'll encounter talented volunteer actors who will step into character as 
former residents of our town, embodying the spirits of those who rest in the cemetery. These passionate 
performers will share deeply personal stories, recounting the struggles, triumphs, joys, and sorrows of 
everyday people from decades and centuries past. From early settlers who carved homes from the 
wilderness to mill workers who powered our local economy, from mothers who raised families through 
difficult times to community leaders who shaped our town's character - each portrayal will help you forge a 
genuine connection with the real people who shaped Lyman's identity.

Beyond the Graves: Our Agricultural Heritage
The tour will also feature the compelling story of the historic grange building that once stood proudly just 
outside the cemetery grounds. This addition provides fascinating insight into Lyman's agricultural roots and 
the strong social bonds that united farming families throughout our region's history. You will learn how these 
community gathering places served as the heart of rural life, hosting everything from harvest celebrations to 
important town meetings.

A Community Celebration
This promises to be an unforgettable blend of history, storytelling, theatrical performance, and community 
spirit. Whether you're a dedicated history enthusiast, a family looking for an educational and entertaining 
outing, or simply someone curious about the fascinating roots of our town, this event offers something 
meaningful for visitors of all ages and interests.
The cemetery walk represents months of careful research, planning, and collaboration between two of our 
most dedicated historical organizations, ensuring both historical accuracy and engaging presentation.

Don't Miss Out
Stay tuned for more details by following the Lyman Historical Society on Facebook for updates on 
specific times and featured historical figures you'll meet along the way. 

Don't miss this rare opportunity to walk among history, discover the compelling stories that built our 
community, and gain a deeper appreciation for the remarkable people who came before us. This is more 
than just a tour—it's a chance to connect with the very soul of Lyman's past.

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 11 of 20



LYMAN HISTORICAL SOCIETY

 YORK COUNTY'S BASEBALL LEGENDS: THE RESULTS ARE IN!

The Lyman Historical Society brought local baseball history to life at the Acton Fair Museum on August 23-
24 with a "Penny Poll" that had visitors voting for their favorite York County baseball legend. With 216 
participants casting votes, the results revealed our community's favorite diamond heroes from the early 
days of professional baseball.

A Winning Connection
What makes these results particularly special is how they highlight York County's deep baseball roots 
during the sport's golden age. All three players had connections to the Boston Americans (later the Red 
Sox), showcasing the regional pipeline of talent that flowed from Maine to the major leagues.
The enthusiasm from 216 visitors to the Acton Fair demonstrated genuine interest in our local sports 
heritage. Congratulations to Freddie Parent for earning the people's choice, and to all three legends 
whose stories remind us that extraordinary achievements can have humble beginnings right here in our 
own  backyard.

For more details, please reference the Waterboro Reporter

August 14, 2025 edition: REP_8-14-25.pdf
August 28, 2025 edition: REP_8-28-25.pdf

Or contact Pat Littlefield with the Lyman Historical Society via https://lymanhistoricalsociety.org/

Alfred "Freddie" Parent (1875-1972) took the championship with 47% of the vote. This 
Biddeford native played in the historic 1903 World Series with the Boston Americans (that 
later became the Boston Red Sox), helping his team defeat Philadelphia in the very first 
modern World Series. Later in his career, Parent served as pitching coach to the legendary 
Babe Ruth.

John "Colby Jack" Coombs (1882-1957) earned second place with 30% of votes. 
Though born in Iowa, Coombs moved to Kennebunk as a young child and became a 
Maine baseball legend. His incredible career included 53 consecutive scoreless innings 
and time with the Boston Americans. Baseball ran in the family – his brother Bobby and 
nephew Ernest (both born in Lyman) also played professionally.

Harry Donald Lord (1882-1948) captured 23% of the vote. Born in Kezar Falls, Lord made 
history as the first named captain of the Boston Red Sox in 1908, playing alongside greats 
like Cy Young. He was famous for his speed, once clocked at 3.2 seconds from home plate 
to first base – the fastest time in the Major Leagues.

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 12 of 20

https://www.waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-14-25.pdf
https://www.waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-14-25.pdf
https://www.waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-14-25.pdf
https://www.waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-14-25.pdf
https://www.waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-14-25.pdf
https://waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-28-25.pdf
https://waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-28-25.pdf
https://waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-28-25.pdf
https://waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-28-25.pdf
https://waterbororeporter.com/IMAGES_reporter/REP_8-28-25.pdf
https://lymanhistoricalsociety.org/


ONGOING EVENTS

LYMAN LIBRARY

HELLO FROM THE LYMAN COMMUNITY LIBRARY!

SUMMER READING 2025 is complete! Participants logged over 125 full days of reading 
in July and August—that's like reading 24/7 for four months straight! Special thanks to 
volunteer and Library Board member Peggy LaVigne, who cut out over 6,000 Reading 
Dragon cards for our readers.

READING RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OUR LIBRARIANS

Amber
“Sorcery and Small Magics” by Maiga Doocy - Fantasy romance about rival 
sorcerers breaking a curse 

Gina
“Love Haters” by Katherine Center – Romance/comedy about a video producer and 
Coast Guard swimmer 

Leila
“Bunny” by Mona Awad - Creative writing program story that turns into deliciously 
unhinged cult shenanigans

1,000 Books Before Kindergarten: We provide logbooks, stickers, and a Polaroid camera to 
document your little's progress!! Ask us during Baby Storytime (Thursdays @ 10) or Preschool 
Storytime (Fridays @ 10).

Kids' Crafts: Wednesdays @ 3:30 with Miss Gina

Cribbage Club: Wednesday evenings, all skill levels welcome

Crafternoon: Fridays @ 1pm-3pm, bring your current project and get some chatting in while you 
work on your craft (knitting, crocheting, beading, papercrafts, quilting, and needle felting).

Adult Book Club: September’s pick was Kate Atkinson's Death at the Sign of the Rook. We 
meet the last Thursday evening of each month. Follow us on Facebook to find out the next gem 
pick for October! @Community Library, Lyman, Maine

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 13 of 20



GOODWINS MILLS FIRE-RESCUE: SERVING DAYTON & LYMAN AROUND THE CLOCK

Thanks to support from town voters, Goodwins Mills Fire-Rescue has maintained 
24/7 staffing with three personnel since July 1st. With call volume exceeding 
700 incidents this year, this increased staffing has significantly improved our 
ability to serve both Dayton and Lyman communities. This level of staffing has 
helped us better serve our communities!

FIRE DANGER REMAINS HIGH

As we transition from summer to fall, fire danger concerns persist statewide. 
Residents are reminded that outdoor burning beyond a 3x3 campfire requires a 
daily burning permit, available at the fire station or online through Maine Open 
Burn Permit. Due to ongoing dry conditions, burn permits will be limited and 
closely monitored until significant rainfall occurs. Check current fire danger levels 
on the Maine Forest Service website or our station signboards.

UPCOMING EVENTS
Annual Open House: Join us Wednesday, October 8th for 
hands-on demonstrations, educational materials, kid’s 
goodies, and a food truck. Don't miss this fun-filled 
community event!

Fire Prevention Week: October 5th-11th focuses on "Charge into Fire Safety: Lithium-Ion Batteries in 
Your Home." GMFR will visit local schools and provide safety materials during our open house. 

GOODWIN MILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT
by Chief Dylan Martin

Low. Fuels do not ignite readily from small firebrands, 
although a more intense *-heat-* source, such as lightning, 
may start many fires in duff or punky wood. Fires in open 
cured grassland may burn freely a few hours after rain, but 
woods fires spread slowly by creeping or smoldering, and 
burn in irregular fingers. There is little danger of spotting.
The color code for Low is green

High. All fine dead fuels ignite readily and fires start easily 
from most causes. Unattended brush and campfires are likely 
to escape. Fires spread rapidly and short-distance spotting is 
common. High-intensity burning may develop on slopes, in 
concentrations of fine fuel. Fires may become serious and 
their control difficult, unless they are hit hard and fast while 
small.
The color code for High is yellow.

Moderate. Fires can start from most accidental causes, but 
with the exception of lightning fires in some areas, the number 
of starts is generally low. Fires in open-cured grassland will 
burn briskly and spread rapidly on windy days. Woods fires 
spread slowly to moderately fast. The average fire is of 
moderate intensity, although heavy concentrations of fuel, 
especially draped fuel, may burn hot. Short-distance spotting 
may occur but is not persistent. Fires are not likely to become 
serious, and control is relatively easy.
The color code for Moderate is blue

Very High. Fires start easily from all causes, and immediately 
after ignition, spread rapidly and increase quickly in intensity. 
Spot fires are a constant danger. Fires burning in light fuels 
may quickly develop high-intensity characteristics; such as, 
long-distance spotting and fire whirlwinds, when they burn 
into heavier fuels. Direct attack at the head of such fires is 
rarely possible after they have been burning more than a few 
minutes.
The color code for Very High is orange.

Extreme. Fires under extreme conditions start quickly, spread furiously, and burn intensely. All fires are potentially serious. 
Development into high-intensity burning will usually be faster and occur from smaller fires than in the very high danger class (item 
4). Direct attack is rarely possible, and may be dangerous, except immediately after ignition. Fires that develop headway in heavy 
slash or in conifer stands may be unmanageable while the extreme burning condition lasts. Under these conditions, the only 
effective and safe control action is on the flanks until the weather changes or the fuel supply lessens.
The color code for Extreme is red.

NATIONAL FIRE DANGER RATING SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 14 of 20

https://apps1.web.maine.gov/burnpermit/public/index.html
https://apps1.web.maine.gov/burnpermit/public/index.html


• “Wreaths for Southern Maine Veterans Cemetery” fundraiser: event includes a buffet, raffles
and chapter items for purchase

•  - Oct 18, 4:30p-6p, VFW Post 9935, 1 Hutchinson St, Sanford, ME 04073

• “Christmas Party for hosting [18] Veterans: this event will honor 18 veterans from the Career
House in Biddeford, Maine and The Huot Home in Saco.  Santa will also be there!

•  - Dec 7, 1p, VFW Post 9935, 1 Hutchinson St, Sanford, ME 04073

• “Wreathes Across America Ceremony”: ceremony honoring our fallen heroes

•  - Dec 13th, please arrive no later than 11:15a, Southern Maine Memorial Veterans Cemetery, 83
• Stanley Rd, Springvale, ME 04083

•  - There will be buses that can take you from the school parking lot next to the Memorial Gym on
• Main St. in Sanford

VETERAN’S DAY, NOVEMBER 11Th

Veterans Day is on November 11th – that is the date 
when World War I officially ended. At the 11th hour
of the 11th day of the 11th month in 1918, the 
Armistice went into effect, halting the fighting on 
the Western Front. This date holds true regardless 
of weather or day of the week and represents the 
unfailing dedication of all America’s veterans.  
We honor those who served, and those still 
serving for their patriotism, love of country, and 
willingness to serve and sacrifice for the common 
good.

ROLLING THUNDER (CHAPTER 1)

The Rolling Thunder (Chapter 1) continues their important mission of recognizing and supporting these 
brave men and women who have served our country. Over the next few months, they have several 
meaningful events planned that offer our community opportunities to show our appreciation for our 
veterans. 

LOCAL EVENTS

EVENTS HONORING OUR VETERANS

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 15 of 20



LIVING WITH DEMENTIA

Southern Maine Agency on Aging 
(SMAA) provides Adult Day Centers in 
Biddeford and Springvale for older adults living 
with dementia, providing person-centered care 
while encouraging socialization, brain-
stimulating activities and maximum 
independence. Person-centered activities are 
designed to honor and engage every member 
in ways that are physically and cognitively 
stimulating, and fun. Activities are always 
being tailored to what is meaningful and of 
interest to current members. 

SMAA also provides a connection to agencies 
that provide assistance with medical and 
household home care needs, such as help with 
housecleaning, grocery shopping, laundry, 
meal prep, bathing, dressing, medication 
management and/or nursing care. 1-800-427-
7411

At Home Family Supports provides personal 
and residential services specializing in services 
for our elderly, physically and developmentally 
disabled individuals. Located in Waterboro. 
207-247-1128 or 1-800-642-2762

Catholic Charities of Maine provides 
homemaker services for seniors and 
individuals with disabilities, including in-home 
assistance with housekeeping, groceries, meal 
preparation and laundry. 207-781-8550 or 1-
800-781-8550

SEASONAL RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES

Looking to join the local snowmobile club or 
take an adult education class this Fall? 
Checkout these websites for additional 
information.

Massabesic ATV Club
http://massabesicatvclub.com/

Lyman Snowmobile Club
https://www.lymansnowmobileclub.com/

Massabesic Adult Education & Community 
Education
https://massabesic.maineadulted.com/ 

LOCAL RESOURCES

RSU 57 COMMUNITYNEWSLETTER

https://secure.smore.com/n/e04tk

 RSU57 YOUTUBE CHANNEL
https://www.youtube.com/@RSU57-
Massabesic/streams

POND LIFE

Being the only pond in Lyman that has a public 
boat ramp, residents of Kennebunk Pond have 
a team of volunteer Invasive Plant Patrollers 
who are trained and certified by Lake Stewards 
of Maine. Annual monitoring is performed 
around the perimeter of the pond in August 
when growth is at its peak. If any suspicious 
growth is found, it’s clipped, photographed 
and sent in for further inspection. Knock on 
wood, no invasives have been found! To keep 
all of our ponds clear of invasive plants, check 
all watercraft, trailers and hiking boots before 
entering a new body of water, and report any 
suspicious looking plants to Maine DEP at 207-
287-3901.
For more information,
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-
aquatic-plants-in-maine/

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 16 of 20

https://www.smaaa.org/index.html
https://www.smaaa.org/index.html
https://athomefamilysupports.com/
https://www.ccmaine.org/independent-support-services
https://www.lymansnowmobileclub.com/
https://massabesic.maineadulted.com/
https://secure.smore.com/n/e04tk
https://secure.smore.com/n/e04tk
https://secure.smore.com/n/e04tk
https://www.youtube.com/@RSU57-Massabesic/streams
https://www.youtube.com/@RSU57-Massabesic/streams
https://www.youtube.com/@RSU57-Massabesic/streams
https://www.youtube.com/@RSU57-Massabesic/streams
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/
https://mainelakes.org/invasives/invasive-aquatic-plants-in-maine/


LOCAL RESOURCES

FOOD ASSISTANCE

Town of Lyman General Assistance 
Program is intended to assist citizens who 
have exhausted all other sources to help with 
meeting basic needs such as rent, food, heat, 
and other essential services. Contact Lyman 
Town Hall for more information 207-468-5901, 
or https://lyman-
me.gov/departments/general-assistance/ 

York County Shelters Program Food Pantry
They also have a Pet Food pantry, providing 
cat food, dog food, cat litter and various pet 
supplies
5 Swetts Bridge Rd, Alfred, ME 04002
(207) 324-1137
yorkcountyshelterprograms.com
Tuesday Noon - 3 PM
Friday  Noon - 3 PM

Waterboro Community Food Pantry
26 Townhouse Rd, East Waterboro, Me 04030
(207) 247-7789
Tuesday 1PM-7PM

Biddeford Food Pantry
162 Elm St, Biddeford, ME 04005
(207) 282-4771
biddefordfoodpantry.org
Tuesday 9am - 11am
Wednesday 9am - 11am
Thursday 9am - 11am

Meals on Wheels – Southern Maine Agency 
on Aging
provides nutritious and delicious home-
delivered meals to older adults in York 
County. Call 800-427-7411 for more 
information.
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-
adults/nutrition/ 

Matthew 25:35 Meal
Free hot meal service at the St. Thomas 
School at 69 North Ave in Sanford on the 
second Tuesday of each month. All are 
welcome to attend starting at 6p. For more 
information, please call the Saint 
Thérèse Parish Office at 207-324-2420.
https://stthereseparishmaine.org/matthew-
meal 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program (SNAP) provides a monthly benefit 
to help low-income households purchase 
nutritious food.
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-
services/food-supplement

Maine Harvest Bucks gives Bonus Bucks to 
buy fresh fruits and vegetables when you 
spend your SNAP/EBT dollars on local food. 
Locations in Alfred, Kennebunk, Sanford, 
Springvale & E. Waterboro and Biddeford.
https://www.maineharvestbucks.org/home 

Maine Senior FarmShare provides income-
eligible older adults with the opportunity to 
receive share (worth $50) of local produce at 
no cost from Maine farmers during the 
growing season. 207-287-3491
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/food-
assistance/farmshare/olderadults.shtml 

OCT – DEC 2025

Page 17 of 20

https://lyman-me.gov/departments/general-assistance/
https://lyman-me.gov/departments/general-assistance/
https://lyman-me.gov/departments/general-assistance/
https://lyman-me.gov/departments/general-assistance/
https://lyman-me.gov/departments/general-assistance/
https://www.biddefordfoodpantry.org/
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-adults/nutrition/
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-adults/nutrition/
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-adults/nutrition/
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-adults/nutrition/
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-adults/nutrition/
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-adults/nutrition/
https://www.smaaa.org/services-for-older-adults/nutrition/
https://stthereseparishmaine.org/matthew-meal
https://stthereseparishmaine.org/matthew-meal
https://stthereseparishmaine.org/matthew-meal
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/food-supplement
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/food-supplement
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/food-supplement
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/food-supplement
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ofi/programs-services/food-supplement
https://www.maineharvestbucks.org/home
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/food-assistance/farmshare/olderadults.shtml
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/food-assistance/farmshare/olderadults.shtml
https://www.maine.gov/dacf/ard/food-assistance/farmshare/olderadults.shtml


STAY SAFE WHILE HOLIDAY SHOPPING

The holiday season brings joy, family gatherings, 
and shopping for those special gifts. Whether you 
are visiting local businesses or shopping online, a 
little awareness keeps you and your purchases 
safe.

Before You Leave Home
Make a plan. List what you need and set a budget. 
Share your shopping plans with someone, 
including where you're going and when you will 
return.

Travel light. Carry only the cards and cash you 
need. Use a secure bag that zips closed and keep it 
close to your body.

While You Are Out Shopping
Stay alert and aware. Keep your head up and avoid 
phone distractions while walking. Trust your 
instincts – if something feels off, leave the area.
Park smart. Choose well-lit spots close to store 
entrances. Lock your car and keep purchases in the 
trunk or out of sight.

Protect your information. Cover your PIN when 
using ATMs and keep credit cards in sight when 
paying.

Online Shopping Safety
Shop securely. Look for "https://" and a lock icon in 
your browser. Stick to reputable retailers.
Use secure payments. Credit cards offer more 
protection than debit cards. Consider using PayPal 
for extra security.

Monitor your accounts. Check statements regularly 
and report suspicious activity immediately.

Do not click on “account links” sent to you via 
email or text.  Use your bank or agency known 
websites or apps to check you information.

Stay Safe
Be cautious with packages. Don't leave purchases 
visible in your car. Have your keys ready and check 
around your vehicle before getting in.

Remember: Your safety is worth more than any 
possession. The holidays should be a time of joy 
with loved ones. Taking these simple precautions 
helps you focus on creating wonderful memories 
with family and friends.

SEASONAL GARDEN TIPS

Fall Planting Guide: Replant your garden beds 
that previously contained early summer plants! 
Reseed with fall and winter crops such as 
spinach, lettuce, radishes, cilantro, and arugula. 
Planting these in October will provide harvests 
until the hard frost and can survive early frosts 
with simple sheet covers. 

Gardening Resource: burpee.com for additional 
tips

October Garlic Planting: Plant garlic before the 
ground freezes, 6 inches deep and 6 inches apart. 
Mix bonemeal in with the soil, cover with soil, and 
add 6 inches of straw mulch.

SEASON RECIPE

MOM’S APPLE CRISP 

INGREDIENTS

- 4-6 large Granny Smith apples
- 8 graham crackers, chopped
- ¾ cup packed brown sugar
- ½ cup quick or old-fashioned oats
- ½ cup all-purpose flour
- 1½ tsp ground cinnamon
- ¾ cup butter, melted
- Whipped cream or ice cream (optional)

DIRECTIONS

Peel, core, and slice the apples, then place them 
in a small oven-safe pie plate or pan.

Combine graham crackers, brown sugar, oats, 
flour, and cinnamon. Add butter; mix well. Spoon 
over apples.

Bake at 370° for 50-55 min (until apples are 
tender)

Cool slightly. Serve with whipped cream or ice 
cream, if you like.

YIELD:

6-8  servings

SEASONAL TIPS OCT – DEC 2025

Page 18 of 20



JUST FOR KIDS!

Page 19 of 20



20

JUST FOR KIDS!

Page 20 of 20



Towns of Dayton and Lyman 

Goodwin’s Mills Fire-Rescue  
481 Goodwin’s Mills Road 

Lyman, Maine 04002-7524 

(207) 499-7878

Office of the Fire Chief 
   Chief Fire Executive

   Director, Emergency Medical Services
   Forest Fire Warden

   Director, Emergency Management

PUBLIC NOTICE 

To: Lyman Residents 

From: Chief Dylan Martin 

Subject: Route 35 Closure 

Date: 09/11/2025 

Goodwins Mills Fire-Rescue was notified last week of an impending closure of Alewive 

Rd. (Route 35) due to a replacement of Days Mills Bridge. Though this bridge doesn’t physically 

touch our town, it’s the primary pathway to the South Lyman area. With the road closure, it will 

affect our department’s response times to the residents and businesses beyond the bridge. This 

project is scheduled to start on Monday Sept. 15th with an estimated completion of June 2026. 

Due to this uncontrollable situation, we have mutual aid agreements in place with Alfred 

Fire Department, and other surrounding agencies, to ensure we continue providing an 

appropriate, effective, and timely response. Goodwins Mills crews will still be responding to all 

requests for services to this area, however residents should be aware that based on 9-1-1 call 

processing protocols and call classification, our mutual aid partners will also be assigned to the 

incident and will likely arrive before Goodwins Mills crews. 

Should anyone have questions or concerns, please reach out to the Fire Department 

Administrative line at (207) 499-7878, and we will do our best to answer those questions. Please 

be patient with this project and be safe. 

Respectfully, 

Dylan D. Martin 

Fire Chief 

EMA Director 

ITEM #4: (a.) GMFR 



ITEM #4: (b.) Expense Report

























Report to Selectmen 

Month of August 2025 

2025-2026 Tax Year 

Real Estate Tax Commitment - $9,348,146.37 

Personal Property Tax Commitment – $     44,406.29   

Total Tax Commitment: $9,392,552.66     

Supplemental Taxes YTD: $ 

Abatements Granted YTD: $ 

2025 Supplemental Tax $       2,302.22    

Real Estate / Personal Property Tax Payments Collected $57,757.26 
Includes Current, Delinquent, Prepayments, and Lien Payments for the month. 

Year to Date: $129,769.39 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

Monthly Excise Tax 

Excise Tax Received 

Vehicles registered here at office:    $ 120,084.46 

Online Rapid Renewal Service      17,951.61 

Total Vehicle Excise   $ 138,036.07 

Boat Excise 

Boats registered here at office:    $    257.00 

Online Registration Service   $        16.00 

Total Boat Excise    $        273.00 

Total Excise   $ 138,309.07 

Excise Tax Reimbursement      $     

Excise Tax Collected by State 

Year-to-date excise collection   $ 279,890.29 

Respectfully submitted: Susan J. Bellerose, Tax Collector 

ITEM #4: (c.) Tax Report



ITEM #4: (d.) Assessing Report





ITEM #5: (a.) Special Amusement Permit - On A Plain Brewery

Lindsay Gagne
Pencil



TOWN OF LYMAN 

SPECIAL AMUSEMENT ORDINANCE 

1. TITLE

This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the Special Amusement Ordinance of the Town of Lyman,

Maine.

2. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to control the issuance of special permits for music, dancing or entertainment

in facilities licensed by the State of Maine to sell liquor and is adopted pursuant to Title 28-A M.R.S.A. Section

1054.

3. DEFINITIONS

As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

A) Compliance Report:  The source document prepared by the inspection officer after receiving a complaint

detailing an incident. The report when duly signed by the officer shall become a matter of record.  The report

shall remain on file until the cessation of the use for which the special amusement permit was issued, regardless

of any change in ownership or control of the use.  Each complaint shall be investigated by the responding

officer and attested to as to the validity of said complaint.

B) Entertainment:  For the purpose of this Ordinance “entertainment” shall include any amusement,

performance, exhibition or diversion for patrons or customers of the licensed premises whether provided by

professional entertainers or by full-time or part-time employees of the licensed premises whose incidental duties

include activities with an entertainment value coincident to any music, dancing or live acts.

C) Inspection Officer:  The Law or Code Enforcement Officer acting on behalf of the Town to ensure proper

enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance.

D) Licensee:  For the purpose of this Section, “licensee” shall include the holder of a license issued under Title

28-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, or any person, individual, partnership, firm, association, corporation or

other legal entity, or any agent, or employee of any such licensee acting on behalf of such licensee.

4. PERMIT REQUIRED

No licensee for the sale of liquor to be consumed on the licensed premises shall permit on the licensed premises,

any music, except radio or other mechanical device, any dancing or entertainment of any sort unless the licensee

shall have first obtained from the Town a Special Amusement Permit approved by a majority of the Board of

Selectmen.

Application(s) for all Special Amusement Permits shall be obtained from the Town Clerk.  Applications for all 

Special Amusement Permits shall be made in writing to the Board of Selectmen and shall state:  

The name of the applicant. 

Applicant’s residential address. 

Name of the business to be conducted. 

Business address. 

Nature of the business. 

Location address to be used.  



All places of residence of the applicant during the past five years> 

Hours during which the business shall be in operation> 

Whether the applicant has ever had a license to conduct business therein described either  

denied or revoked and, if so, the applicant shall describe those circumstances specifically. 

Any additional information as may be needed by the Board of Selectmen in issuing the permit 

including but not limited to,  a copy of the applicant’s liquor license and expiration date> 

No permit shall be issued for any thing, or act, or premises, if the premise or building to be used for such 

purpose do not fully comply with this Ordinance, or any other applicable ordinances, articles, by-laws or rules 

and regulations of the Town and the laws of the State of Maine. 

The fee for a Special Amusement Permit shall be $50 (plus advertising costs). 

The Board of Selectmen shall, prior to granting a permit and after reasonable notice to the public and the 

applicant, hold a public hearing within thirty (30) days of the date when the request was received, at which the 

testimony of the applicant and that of any interested members of the public shall be taken. 

A permit shall be valid only for the licensee year of the applicant’s existing liquor license. 

Any licensee requesting a Special Amusement Permit from the Board of Selectmen shall be notified in writing 

of the Board’s decision no later than sixty (60) days from the date the request was received.  In the event that a 

licensee is denied a permit, the licensee shall be provided with the reasons for denial in writing.  The licensee 

may not reapply for a permit until thirty (30) days after an application for a permit has been denied.  Any 

licensee who has requested a permit and has been denied may, within thirty (30) days of the denial, appeal the 

decision to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

5. INSPECTIONS

Whenever inspections of the premises used for or in connection with the operation of a licensed business which

has obtained a Special Amusement Permit are provided for or required by Ordinance or State law, it shall be the

duty of the licensee, or the person in charge of the premises to be inspected, to admit any officer, official or

employee of the Town authorized to make inspection at any reasonable time that admission is required.

The Board of Selectmen shall require an initial inspection of the premises and licensee for overall ability to 

comply with the provisions of this Ordinance.  Thereafter, at least one inspection annually shall take place.  The 

Inspection Officer shall record the findings by completing a Compliance Report.  

In addition to any other penalty which may be provided, the Board of Selectmen may revoke the Special 

Amusement Permit of any licensee in the Town who refuses to permit any such officer, official or authorized 

employee of the Town to make an inspection, or who interferes with such officer, official or employee while in 

performance of his duties; provided, that no Special Amusement Permit shall be revoked unless written demand 

for the inspection is made upon the licensee or person in charge of the premises, at the time the inspection is 

sought. 

6. SUSPENSTION OR REVOCATION OFA PERMIT

The Board of Selectmen may, after a public hearing preceded by public notice to interested parties, suspend or

revoke any Special Amusement Permits which have been issued under this Ordinance on the grounds that the

music, dancing or entertainment so permitted constitutes a nuisance as set forth in Section 7 of this Ordinance

or violates this or any other Town ordinances, articles, by-laws or rules and regulations.



Any licensee whose permit has been revoked or suspended, may within thirty (30) days of the suspension or 

revocation, appeal the decision to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

7. NUISANCE

The  licensee or his authorized representative shall not permit the use of the premises to result in any continued,

excessive, or unreasonably loud noise, or any noise which either annoys, disturbs, injures or endangers the

comfort, repose, health or safety of individuals; or which results in disturbing the peace and tranquility of the

neighborhood.  The sound levels must comply with the provisions Zoning Ordinance of the Town regulating the

maximum permissible sound pressure levels produced by any activity on a lot.

8. ADMISSION

A licensed hotel, Class A restaurant, Class A tavern or restaurant malt liquor licensee who has been issued a

Special Amusement Permit may charge admission in designated areas approved by the Special Amusement

Permit.

9. SEPARABILITY

The invalidity of any provision of this Ordinance shall not invalidate any other part.







LYMAN CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICE 

11 South Waterboro Road, Lyman Maine  04002 

Rebekah Thompson, Code Enforcement Officer     Julie Lemieux, Code 
Enforcement Assistant 

Telephone: (207) 247-0647     Email:  ceo@lyman-me.gov 

September 2, 2025 

To the Selectboard: 

On Tuesday, September 2, 2025, I went out to do an annual inspection on the 

building and grounds of On a Plain Brewing in preparation for the Selectboard’s 

review of the Special Amusement permit renewal applied for by Lindsey Ouellette. 

The Building & Codes Department is happy to report that the facilities at the On a 

Plain Brewing pass all necessary code requirements. 

Please do not hesitate to contact my office with any questions or concerns. 

Thank you,  

Rebekah Thompson 

Rebekah Thompson 

Code Enforcement Officer 

Town of Lyman 

207-247-0647 



ITEM #5: (b.) Peach Orchard/ Schoolhouse Rd 









1 9/10/2025 9:26 AMTown Manager

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

November 2025
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

December 2025November 2025

Oct 26 27 28 29 30 31 Nov 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
6:00pm SB Meeting - 

Rescheduling 
8:00am Election Day 5:30pm Planning Board

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
Town Hall Closed - 

Veterans Day
6:00pm Parks & Rec 

mtg

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
6:00pm SB Meeting 5:30pm Planning Board

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
Town Hall Closed
Transfer Station Closed

12:00am Town Hall 
Closed

30 Dec 1 2 3 4 5 6

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

ITEM #5: (c.) Reschedule November 3rd Select Board Meeting



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday September 2nd, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 3 

These are summary minutes in nature only and a full video recording of the proceeding is available to view on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams or visit our website: 

https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/  

Selectboard members present: Victoria Gavel, Amber Swett, David Alves, Joseph Wagner, KerryJo Sampson 
Selectboard members absent: none 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board and please be respectful of others. The Board may not
be able to respond to Q&A during public comment; If you wish to be placed on a future agenda,
please contact the Town Manager.
No public Comment.

b. Mail     - None

ITEM #3 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Franchise Agreement, Updates if any

KerryJo Sampson – Discussion regarding the requirement for a letter of consent related to Charter’s
acquisition of Cox. The franchise agreement (Section 6, ownership of the cable system) specifies that
ownership cannot be sold or transferred without prior consent of the town. It was noted that the
agreement, originally from 2001, remains in effect despite changes in providers. Members agreed
that legal clarification is needed; Town attorney will be requested to confirm the process and
determine next steps.

b. Discussion – Kennebunk Pond Beach Gate Damages/Repairs – Tabled until 9/15/25
No Discussion

c. Discussion – Old Post Rd Abandonment Updates and Public Hearing Scheduled 10/20/25
No Discussion

d. Survey Poll Newsletter Name – Results
The board reviewed results of the community poll for the newsletter name, with “Lyman
Connection” receiving the most votes (29%). Submissions for the newsletter include updates from
town departments, the fire department, cemetery association, historical society, Parks and
Recreation, library, RSU 57, and other community groups. Additional content will feature the food
waste diversion program, EcoMaine grant, seasonal clubs, aging resources, food banks, children’s
activities, and volunteer opportunities (including a call for Planning Board members). The draft
newsletter is currently 22 pages, with final review scheduled by September 9. Approval is needed to
ensure publication before October. Work is ongoing to polish and finalize the articles.

ITEM #4 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Fire Commission/ Fire Chief – Discuss & Vote on Electrical & Roof Repairs

The board reviewed proposals for roof replacement and electrical work at the fire station. Precision
Roofing and Normand Electric were selected for the project. The total cost is not to exceed $68,000,
with $34,000 requested from GMFR’s capital improvement funds (Dayton has already approved
their $34,000 share). A contingency buffer was included to cover potential additional costs, such as
unforeseen rot or electrical issues. Work is expected to begin mid-fall, likely in October. The Fire

DRAFT
ITEM #6:(a.) Minutes

https://www.youtube.com/@LymanTownHall/streams
https://lyman-me.gov/committees/board-of-selectmen/agenda-and-minutes/


Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday September 2nd, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 3 

Chief will contact the contractor for clarification regarding potential added costs in the event 
unforeseen repairs are found during the project.  
David Alves – Motions to approve the release of funds from the GMFR Capital Improvement 
Account from the Town of Lyman not to exceed $34,000 for the roof and electrical repairs of the 
GMFR building.  
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

b. Treasurer – Expense Report  - Reviewed in packet.

ITEM #5 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discussion – Employee Recognition Program

Discussion regarding continuing last year’s employee recognition program, which included a free
personal day, handwritten thank-you notes, and a $50 gift card for each employee. The program
was well-received, and funds were budgeted for it again this year. The Board agreed to proceed,
with personal days valid through the end of the fiscal year and cards to be prepared and signed as
before.
KerryJo Sampson – Motions to approve.
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. Appointment – Warden for November 4th,2025 State Referendum
KerryJo Sampson – Motions to appoint Margarette “Peggy” Macdonald as Warden
Joseph Wagner – Seconds the motion. Motion passes :5-0-0

ITEM #6 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 08/18/2025

David Alves – Motions to approve. KerryJo Sampson seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Discussion for correction to Ambers Last name under motion to adjourn.

ITEM #7 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #10 in the amount of $31,192.20

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. Joseph Wagner seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #11 (FY2026) in the amount of $740,578.55

Amber Swett – Motions to approve. David Alves seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURN 
David Alves – Motions to adjourn. Amber Swett seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0. DRAFT



Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday September 2nd, 2025 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 3 

__________________________________________ 
Victoria Gavel 

__________________________________________ 
David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Amber Swett 

_____________________________________________ 

Joseph Wagner 

_____________________________________________ 

KerryJo Sampson 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Town Manager of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting of 3 pages 
are the original minutes of the Select Board Meeting dated September 2nd, 2025 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne 

DRAFT



ITEM #7: (a.) Payroll Warrant









ITEM #7: (b.) AP Warrant















ITEM #7: (c.) AP Warrant




	Lyman Newsletter ed1 oct 2025 v3.pdf
	Slide 1: Welcome to the LYMAN CONNECTION
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20




